BYLAWS

FOR

G M SYED MEMORIAL COMMITEE,

a TEXAS NONPROFIT CORPORATION

ARTICLE I

These bylaws constitute the code of rules adopted by the $\underline{\text{G}}$ $\underline{\text{M}}$ $\underline{\text{SYED}}$ $\underline{\text{MEMORIAL COMMITEE}}$ for the regulation and management of its affairs.

ARTICLE II Offices

(1) Principal Office:

The principal office of the corporation for the transaction of its business is located in Fort Bend County, Texas.

(2) Change of Address

The county of the corporation's principal office can be changed only by amendment of these bylaws and not otherwise. The board of directors may, however, change the principal office from one location to another within the named county by noting the changed address and effective date below, and such changes of address shall not be deemed an amendment of these bylaws.

8427	Tamayo	Dr.,	Houston,	TX	77083	Dated:	2/18/2005
						Dated:	
						Dated:	

(3) Other Offices

The corporation may also have offices at such other places, within or without the State of Texas, where it is qualified to do business, as its business may require and as the board of directors may, from time to time, designate.

ARTICLE III Purposes & Provisions

(1) Purposes

The GM Syed Memorial Committee ("Corporation") shall exist for the purposes of:

- a) To educate the international community about the G. M. Syed's message of non-violence, democracy, secularism and of the right to self-determination for Sindhis and other oppressed nations.
- b) To sponsor the following programs:
 - i) Organize community outreach events to celebrate the life and work of G. M. Syed;
 - ii) Administer awards recognizing activists, scholars and leaders who have made [an] exceptional contributions to peace and justice for the Sindhi nation or have promoted knowledge about the Sindhi language, culture or people;
 - iii) Promote the teachings of G. M. Syed by such means as available to the organization, including but not limited to publication of reports, books, research articles, and other works, and dissemination of the works on a website and a newsletter.
 - iv) Establish G M Syed Memorial Centers or displays
- c) To advocate and support other organizations working on human rights, religious tolerance, environmental justice, equal rights for women and religious minorities, as well as conflict resolution and peaceful initiatives in Sindh.

(2) Other Provisions

- a) This corporation is organized and operated exclusively for educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Texas Tax Code Section 11.18(c)(1).
- b) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (1) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or (2) by a corporation contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- c) No substantial part of the activities of this corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign (including the publishing or distribution of statements) on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.
- d) The property of this corporation is irrevocably dedicated to

educational purposes meeting the requirements of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act and no part of the net income or assets of the organization shall ever inure to the benefit of any director, officer or member thereof or to the benefit of any private person.

e) On the dissolution or winding up of the corporation, its assets remaining after payment of, or provision for payment of, all debts and liabilities of this corporation, shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation which is organized and operated exclusively for educational purposes meeting the requirements of article 6.02(3) of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act (which refers in part to the distribution of assets for tax-exempt purposes to organizations exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and related statutes).

ARTICLE IV Board of Directors

(1) Powers

The Board of Directors ("Directors") of this Corporation is vested with the management of the business and affairs of this Corporation, subject to the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation, and these bylaws.

(2) Qualifications

Directorships shall not be denied to any person on the basis of race, creed, sex, religion, or national origin. Employees of the Corporation are ineligible to serve on the Board of Directors.

(3) Number of Directors

The Board of Directors will consist of three Directors. Upon majority resolution of the Board of Directors, the number of Directors may be increased or decreased from time to time, but in no event shall a decrease have the effect of shortening the term of an incumbent Director, or decreasing the total number of Directors to less than three Directors. Until the first meeting for electing the Directors occurs, the initial Board of Directors shall consist of the persons listed in the Articles of Incorporation as constituting the initial Board.

(4) Term of Directors

There are no term limits and, therefore, Directors may serve any number of consecutive terms.

(5) Election of Directors

Elections for Directors filling expired terms shall be held at the last meeting of the fiscal year. Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors shall be filled at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special meeting called for that purpose. When a reappointment or replacement is made, the re-appointment or replacement shall be considered effective on the date that the prior term expired (i.e., the new term does not begin on the date of the election). Board members whose terms have expired may continue serving until they are either re-appointed or until their successors are chosen.

(6) Resignation

Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary or President of the Board of Directors. Such resignation shall take effect upon receipt or, if later, at the time specified in the notice.

(7) Removal

Any Director may be removed without cause, at any time, by a majority of the entire Board of Directors, at a Regular or Special Meeting called for that purpose. Any Director under consideration of removal must first be notified about the consideration by written notice at least five days prior to the meeting at which the vote takes place.

(8) Vacancies

Vacancies shall be filled by majority vote of the remaining members of the Board of Directors, though less than a quorum, and the Director filling the vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the directorship that was vacated. Vacancies shall be filled as soon as practical. Any Director may make nominations to fill vacant directorships.

(9) Compensation

Directors shall not receive any salaries or other compensation for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may be reimbursed for any actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for the Corporation, as long as a majority of disinterested Board of Directors approve the reimbursement. The Corporation shall not loan money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director.

ARTICLE V Committees

(1) Executive Committee

The President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary of the Corporation shall constitute the executive committee. The executive committee shall have the authority to act on behalf of the Corporation in between Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors must validate the actions of the executive committee at its next Regular or Special Meeting. Any such action not so validated will not be legally binding on the Corporation. The President shall act as chairperson of the executive committee. A majority of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and all decisions shall be by majority vote of those present.

(2) Standing Committees

The Corporation shall have two standing committees which shall assist the Board of Directors in carrying out the management of the Corporation: The Anniversary Commemoration Committee and the The Board of Directors shall appoint the Award Committee. members of each committee. Each standing committee shall have at least one Director as member. Employees of the Corporation and members of the community may also be appointed to serve as Committees shall meet upon call of the Board committee members. of Directors or the chair of the Committee, review the activities of the Corporation in the Committee's respective areas, and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for the Board's final The Board of Directors shall appoint the chair of each committee. The Chair of each committee shall ensure that minutes of the committee meetings are taken and present a copy of the minutes to the Secretary within the two weeks following the meeting. Committee meetings shall be open to all members of the Board of Directors.

(a) The Anniversary Commemoration Committee shall be responsible for organizing, publicizing, and fundraising for the Annual Commemoration Event(s) to be held in third week of January each year.

(b) The Award Committee shall be responsible for managing the "Saeen G M Syed Memorial Award."

(3) Additional Committees

The Board of Directors may from time to time designate and appoint additional standing or temporary committees by majority vote of the Board of Directors. Such committees shall have and exercise such prescribed authority as is designated by the Board of Directors. The Directors may authorize these committees to exercise any powers, responsibilities, and duties consistent with the Articles of Incorporation and these bylaws.

ARTICLE VI Board Meetings

(1) Place of Board Meetings

Regular and Special Meetings of the Board of Directors will be held online or at any other place that the President may designate.

(2) Regular and Special Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held every third month, or more frequently as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors. Special Meetings may be called by the President or any two Directors. An orientation meeting will be held each year for the new members of the Board of Directors.

(3) Notice of Board Meetings

Notice of the date, time, and place of Regular Meetings shall be given to each board member by regular mail, telephone (including voice mail), facsimile, or e-mail no less than seven days notice prior to the meeting. Notice of the date, time, and place of special meetings shall be given to each board member using the same methods, but with no less than three days notice prior to the meeting, with the exception of special meetings held to amend the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws, for which a fifteenday written notice by mail, facsimile or email shall be required specifying the proposed amendment.

(4) Waiver of Notice

Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board of Directors for which the Director did not receive the required notice will constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting unless the Director objects at the beginning of the

meeting to the transaction of business on the grounds that the meeting was not lawfully called or convened.

(5) Quorum

A majority of the incumbent Directors (not counting vacancies) shall constitute a quorum for the purposes of convening a meeting or conducting business. At Board meetings where a quorum is present, a majority vote of the Directors attending shall constitute an act of the Board unless a greater number is required by the Articles of Incorporation or by any provision of these bylaws.

(6) Actions without a Meeting

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors under the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation, and these bylaws may be taken without a meeting, if all Directors individually and collectively consent in writing, setting forth the action to be taken. Such written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Board.

(7) Open Meetings

Meetings shall be open to the general public, except when personnel, real estate, or litigation matters are being discussed.

ARTICLE VII Officers

(1) Roster of Officers

The Corporation shall have a President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The Corporation may have, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, such other officers as may be appointed by the Directors. One person may hold two or more offices, except those serving as President or Secretary.

(2) Election and Removal of Officers

All officers shall serve two-year terms. The election shall be conducted at the Board of Directors' first meeting of the fiscal year and following the election of the new Board of Directors filling expired terms, or as soon as practical thereafter. Officers shall remain in office until their successors have been selected. Officers may serve consecutive terms without limit. The election of officers shall be by majority vote of the Board of Directors attending the meeting.

(3) Vacancies

If a vacancy occurs during the term of office for any elected officer, the Board of Directors shall elect a new officer to fill the remainder of the term as soon as practical, by majority vote of Directors present.

(4) President

- \$ The President will supervise and control the affairs of the Corporation and shall exercise such supervisory powers as may be given her by the Board of Directors.
- \$ The President will perform all duties incident to such office and such other duties as may be provided in these bylaws or as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The President shall preside at all board meetings and shall exercise parliamentary control in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order.
- \$ The President shall serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors or these bylaws.
- \$ The President shall, with the advice of the Board of Directors and in accordance with the requirements of these bylaws, set the agenda for each meeting of the Board of Directors.

(5) Vice President

- \$ The Vice President shall act in place of the President in the event of the President's absence, inability, or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the board.
- \$ The Vice President shall serve as the parliamentarian and interpret any ambiguities of the bylaws.

(6) Secretary

- \$ The Secretary will perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these bylaws.
- \$ The Secretary shall attest to and keep the bylaws and other legal records of the Corporation, or copies thereof, at the principal office of the Corporation.
- \$ The Secretary shall take or ensure that someone takes minutes of all meetings of the committees and Board of Directors, and shall keep copies of all minutes at the principal office of the Corporation.
- \$ The Secretary shall keep a record of the names and addresses of the Directors at the principal office of the Corporation.

- \$ The Secretary shall, with the approval of the Board of Directors, set up procedures for any elections held by the Corporation. The Secretary shall keep a record of all votes cast in such elections.
- \$ The Secretary shall ensure that all records of the Corporation, minutes of all official meetings, and records of all votes, are made available for inspection by any member of the Board of Directors at the principal office of the Corporation during regular business hours.
- \$ The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these bylaws or as required by law.
- \$ The Secretary shall see that all books, reports, statements, certificates, and other documents and records of the Corporation are properly kept and filed.
- \$ In the case of the absence or disability of the Secretary, or the Secretary's refusal or neglect to fulfill the duties of Secretary, the Vice President shall perform the functions of the Secretary.

(7) Treasurer

- \$ The Treasurer will have charge and custody of all funds of the Corporation, will oversee and supervise the financial business of the Corporation, will render reports and accountings to the Directors as required by the Board of Directors, and will perform in general all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these bylaws, or which may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- \$ The Treasurer shall give to the Corporation a bond with one or more sureties for the faithful performance of the duties of the office and for the restoration to the Corporation—in the case of his or her death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office—all books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of whatever kind in his or her possession or under his control belonging to the Corporation. The amount of the bond shall be determined by the Board of Directors.
- \$ The Treasurer and the staff of the Corporation shall devise a plan providing for the acceptance and disbursement of all funds of the Corporation which shall be approved by the Board of Directors.
- \$ The Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall set up all checking, savings, and investment accounts of the Corporation and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in such accounts.

- \$ The Treasurer's signature shall be the authorized signature for all checking, savings, and investment accounts of the Corporation unless the Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Directors, designates another member of the Board of Directors or employee of the Corporation as the authorized signatory for a particular type of disbursement.
- \$ The Treasurer shall prepare a monthly report for the Board of Directors, providing an accounting of all transactions and of the financial conditions of the Corporation.
- \$ The Treasurer shall keep all financing records, books, and annual reports of the financial activities of the Corporation at the principal office of the Corporation and make them available at the request of any Director or member of the public during regular business hours for inspection and copying.

ARTICLE VIII Rules of Procedure

The proceedings and business of the Board of Directors shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Parliamentary Procedure unless otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX Executive Director

The Board of Directors may, upon resolution, appoint an Executive Director to serve at the board's discretion and to carry out whatever tasks the board from time to time resolves. The Executive Director shall be paid an annual salary set by the Board of Directors. Subject to such supervisory powers as are vested in the Board of Directors, the Executive Director shall supervise, direct, and control the business of the Corporation and actively manage its business, and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by these bylaws.

The Executive Director may engage in negotiations involving commitments of the resources of the Corporation or the acceptance of money or resources by the Corporation in furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation as set out in the Articles of Incorporation and these bylaws. The Executive Director shall generally be expected to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and meetings of the general membership.

ARTICLE X Indemnification

(1) Indemnification

To the extent permitted by law, any person (and the heirs, executors, and administrators of such person) made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a Director or Officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation against any and all liability and the reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees and disbursements, incurred by him (or by his heirs, executors or administrators) in connection with the defense or settlement of such action, suit, or proceeding, or in connection with any appearance therein.

(2) Limits on Indemnification

Notwithstanding the above, the corporation will indemnify a person only if he acted in good faith and reasonably believed that his conduct was in the corporation=s best interests. In the case of a criminal proceeding, the person may be indemnified only if he had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful.

ARTICLE XII Operations

(1) Execution of Documents

Unless specifically authorized by the Board of Directors or as otherwise required by law, all final contracts, deeds, conveyances, leases, promissory notes, or legal written instruments executed in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation shall be signed and executed by the Executive Director and the President (or such other person designated by the Board of Directors), pursuant to the general authorization of the Board. All conveyances of land by deed shall be signed by the President or two other members of Executive Committee and must be approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors.

(2) Disbursement of Funds

Financial Transactions which have a value of \$3000 or more shall require majority approval of the Board of Directors or Executive Committee if a majority of the Board of Directors is not immediately available to vote on the

In all other transactions, the Executive transaction. Director may dispense with the funds of the Corporation in accordance with the annual budget approved by the Board of Directors and the purposes of the Corporation as set out in Articles of Incorporation and these bylaws. Notwithstanding the above, all checks of more than \$3000 disbursing funds from any of the Corporation's accounts shall require the signatures of at least two of the the Executive Director, President, Vice following: President, Secretary, or Treasurer.

(3) Procurement Policy

The Corporation shall abide by its procurement policy, set forth in Exhibit B.

(4) Records

The Corporation will keep correct and complete records of account and will also keep minutes of the proceedings of the Board meetings and Committees. The Corporation will keep at its principal place of business the original or a copy of its bylaws, including amendments to date certified by the Secretary of the Corporation.

(5) Inspection of Books and Records

All books and records of this Corporation may be inspected by any Director for any purpose at any reasonable time on written demand.

(6) Loans to Management

The Corporation will make no loans to any of its Directors or Officers.

(7) Amendments

The Board of Directors may adopt Articles of Amendment (amending the Articles of Incorporation) by a vote of two-thirds of Directors present at a meeting where a quorum is present. The bylaws may be amended at any time by a vote of the majority of Directors at a meeting where a quorum is present.

(8) Fiscal Year

The fiscal year for the Corporation will be the calendar year, January 1 to December 31.

(9) Audit

The Corporation shall have an annual audit to be completed by March 31st of each year for the previous fiscal year.

CERTIFICATION

I	hereby	eby certify		t]	hat	at these		bylaws	were	adop	ted	by	the	Boar	ď	of
Di	rectors	of	the	G	M	Syed	Μe	emorial	Commi	ttee	at	its	meet	ing	he	ld
on	August	10,	200	5	th:	rough	te	elephone	⊇.							

Secretary